ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
January 25, 2012
3:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Joe Paskvan, Co-Chair

Senat or Thomas WAgoner, Co-Chair
Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senator Bert Stednan

Senator Lesil MGQiire

Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Cathy G essel
COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON: Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR) Overview by
DNR Conmmi ssi oner Dan Sul livan

- HEARD

SENATE BI LL NO 24

"An Act establishing the Sport Fishing Guide Services Board and
licensing requirenents for sport fishing guide-outfitters, sport
fishing outfitters, sport fishing assistant guides, and sport
fishing transporters; making conform ng amendnents; allow ng the
Departnment of Fish and Gane to collect information on guiding
services; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
SENATE BILL NO 13
"An Act providing for the waiver of certain fees and charges in
state parks for disabled veterans."

- SB 13 MOVED QUT OF COMM TTEE ON 1/ 23/ 12

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- January 25, 2012



BILL: SB 24
SHORT TITLE: SPORT FI SHI NG GUI DI NG SERVI CES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

01/19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 11

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 11 (S) RES, FIN

02/ 07/ 11 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 07/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 07/ 11 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 19/ 11 (S) RES AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 19/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 19/ 11 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 21/ 11 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 21/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 21/ 11 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 10/ 11 (S) RES AT 9: 00 AM Anch LI O Conf Rm
10/ 10/ 11 (S) PUBLI C COMVENT

01/ 23/ 12 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
01/ 23/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 23/ 12 (S) M NUTE( RES)

01/ 25/ 12 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

M CHAEL PAWL.OWBKI, St aff

Senator Lesil MGQuire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Di scussed provisions in CSSB 24( ) version
l.

AL CAI'N

Di vision of Sport Fish

Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane ( ADF&G

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions about provisions in CSSB
24( ) version |I.

DAN SULLI VAN, Comnmi ssi oner

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave presentation on Al aska oil production
i ssues.

Bl LL BARRON, Director

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- January 25, 2012



Division of Gl and Gas

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on Al aska oil production issues.

BRENT GOODRUM Director

D vision of Mning, Land and Water

Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on Al aska oil production issues.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:34: 53 PM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS WAGONER called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:34 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Welechowski, Stevens, French, MQuire,
St edman, Co- Chair Paskvan and Co- Chair \Wagoner.

SB  24- SPORT FI SHI NG GUI DI NG SERVI CES

3:35:10 PM
CO CHAIR WAGONER announced SB 24 to be up for consideration.
[CSSB 24( ), |abeled 27-LS0278\1, was before the commttee.]

M CHAEL PAW.OWBKI, staff to Senator Lesil MGuire, sponsor of SB
24, said the Departnent of Fish and Ganme representatives were
asked to talk about the enforcenent provisions in the current
draft, in particular AS 08.57.220 on page 13, the responsibility
provi si ons.

3:36:51 PM

AL CAIN, Division of Sport Fish, Al aska Departnent of Fish and
Ganme (ADF&G), explained that section (1) on page 14 [Section
.220] makes the guide, outfitter or transporter responsible when
a client commts a violation in their presence. He didn't see
any culpable nmental state stated; Section .200, the civil
penalties provision, would conme into play for that. An exanple
would be a client on a boat catching too many fish while the
gui de wasn't paying attention. But the guide could not be issued
a citation for the same violation that the client had conmtted
in those circunstances.

Section (2) requires that the guide expressly (or inplied)
authorizes an unlawful act; in that case the guide would be
equally responsible for that violation. He could be sentenced
under Section .210, the crimnal provisions.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- January 25, 2012



3:39:46 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN asked how the guide or the assistant guide is
tied back to the outfitter. There seens to be occasi ons when the
behavior of the guide is condoned by the people that own or
manage particular |odges; and then they have the tendency of
claimng they are just hiring an individual contract worker.

MR CAIN said he didn't see any provision allowing that
connection under Section .210 in the bill. And by outfitter, he
assuned that he neant the actual guide; current |aw provides for
operators who enploy guides; those prenises change in SB 24 to
"a guide who enploys assistant guides.” He asked if Senator
St edman neant how the guide who is not on the boat but who is
t he enpl oyer of the assistant guide is made responsi bl e.

SENATOR STEDMAN sai d yes.

MR. CAIN said he didn't see a provision that allows for that
connection. Under Section .210 he sees "a person who is |licensed
under the chapter who commits or aides in the commssion of a
violation or permts the client to conmt a violation." That
| anguage infers the guide or assistant guide who is out on the
boat and does not nake the actual guide who is back at the | odge
responsi bl e. Current |anguage in AS 16.40.260 nmakes the operator
liable for inappropriate actions commtted by the guides they
enploy. At this time SB 24 doesn't capture that el enent.

SENATOR STEDMAN suggested they |ook at strengthening that
| anguage, because there are sonme |odges that condone egregious
violations of the state's fish and gane laws. |It's very
difficult to go back to the | odge owner from a guided sport boat
when he is not on the boat.

3:42:53 PM
CO- CHAIR PASKVAN said he had heard over the years in the
construction trades a general contractor, for exanple, hires

sheetrock workers not as enployees but as i ndependent
contractors, and the question is if a |odge operator would use
an artifice to create a nechanism to avoid a liability for

egr egi ous conduct.

CO CHAI R WAGONER agreed that |anguage needed to be | ooked at and
t hanked M. Cain for his testinony.

3:44: 01 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- January 25, 2012



CO- CHAIR WAGONER said he had an anendnent to restrict public
menbers to current comercial fishers not one person who has
been a commercial fisherman. He also had an anmendment to delete
the waiver for the Kenai River Special Mnagenent area that is
already in statute.

CO- CHAl R WAGONER said SB 24 woul d be held for further work.

Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR) Overvi ew

3:45: 26 PM

CO CHAIR WAGONER invited Department of Natural Resources (DNR)
Comm ssioner Dan Sullivan to provide the presentation Al aska Q|
Producti on | ssues.

3:47: 09 PM

DAN SULLI VAN, Conm ssioner, DNR, said a top priority for him and
the Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR) team is to have a
st rong, respect f ul and responsive relationship wth the
| egi sl ature. He encourages tinely responsive information wth
his teamto help the legislature and the adm nistration do their
jobs. He said he would give an overview of sonme of the
strategies, activities and results they have focused on since
the end of last session and invited them to junp in and ask
guesti ons.

CO CHAIR WAGONER said he wanted sonme enphasis placed on where
they are in the permtting process and cleaning up the backl og
of permts.

COWMM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said he would provide that. He would al so
mention some opportunities and challenges including their
thinking behind the mllion barrels a day "road map." In that
respect he tried to focus their mssion statenent to be nore in
line with Article 8, Section 1, of the Alaska Constitution and
revanp their core services to nore accurately reflect what the
DNR actual |y does.

SENATOR STEVENS asked how the mi ssion statement is different.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN replied that he wanted the departnent's
m ssion statenent to be nore in line with the Constitution's
policy statement. There was another issue from an internal
managenent perspective focusing on providing a mssion that the
departnent gets behind. Early last year when he becane
commi ssioner, he visited a nunber of comunities around the
state and was surprised to hear that in a nunber of areas one of

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- January 25, 2012



the views of DNR is that it was "the departnment of no" and
| ocked up resources, particularly in Fairbanks. He wanted to
make sure that at |east people within the departnent know this
was the land of Al aska people not the land of DNR It doesn't
nmean they are not focused on future generations and
conservation; but he thought it was inportant to make the
alignnment closer to the directive in the Constitution.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said it came out that witing a mssion
statenent is actually a role the legislature has in statute. But
he checked with the Departnent of Law and from their perspective
that didn't preclude conm ssioners fromreworking it.

3:54:46 PM
SENATOR STEVENS said some Senators have said it's their job and
asked himto provide the conmttee with the | egal explanation.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said |anguage says the legislature has
authority to issue mssion statenents, but it doesn't preclude
conmi ssioners fromdoing it.

CO- CHAIR PASKVAN asked if a prior legislature had enacted the
m ssi on statenent.

COWM SSI ONER  SULLIVAN replied in 2003 the Ilegislature |ast
issued a mission statenment and that the DNR s m ssion statenent
has changed a few tines since then.

3:56:12 PM
CO CHAIR PASKVAN repeated that Senate President Stevens was
indicating that he would like to see a | egal analysis of that.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN sai d okay.

SENATOR STEVENS said it would be interesting to see a conparison
inwiting of the old and the new m ssion statenents.

CO CHAI R WAGONER asked himto proceed with his presentation.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said since the last |egislative session,
the United States GCeological Survey (USGS) cane out with new
Cook Inlet estimates reflected in slide 9. Slide 10 showed the
very significant mneral deposits. The key to what he wanted to
cover here was |ooking back on the year since the |ast
| egi slative session when the state governnent was very focused
on a vision and a strategy to address the TransAl aska Pipeline

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- January 25, 2012



System (TAPS) throughput and to get it up to 1 mllion barrels a
day.

4:00: 06 PM
He and his team focused on inplenenting all five parts of their
strategy:
* Enhance Alaska's global conpetitiveness and investnent
climte
* Ensure the permtting process is structured and efficient

* Facilitate and incentivize the next phases of North Slope
devel opnent

e Unlock Alaska's full resource devel opnment potential through
partnerships with key stakehol ders.

* Pronote Al aska's resources and positive investnent climte
to world markets

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said part two is focused on permtting and
Brent Goodrum Director, Division of Mning, Land and Water, who
is aretired Marine and recon and infantry officer and has a | ot
of experience in systens managenent, has been leading the
charge. Since the last session the nunber of people in that
division increased (as part of the increment from the
| egislature) and 31 of 36 vacancies were filled. New enpl oyee
trai ning was conducted for over 50 enployees. They have focused
on a new IT system within the division as part of the same
increnent. At the sane tine, they have nmade a 20 percent dent in
the 2,500 permt backl og.

Additionally, they are looking at an entire area of regulations
and potential statutory changes in a package they woul d present
to the legislature for permtting efficiencies in ternms of
certainty and coordination. They have |istened to stakehol ders
and other agencies and have held public neetings throughout the
state to get input while also trying to coordinate with the
federal governnent. They have been anticipating and planning for
permtting the next phases of resource devel opnment such as shale
oil and wunderground coal gasification, and he reported that
progress had been nade.

4:04: 00 PM

COWMM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said there are signs that some of this is
bearing fruit and they are going to have a busy exploration
season this winter and spring. Simlarly they had a North Sl ope
| ease sale in Decenber that was successful. He said they
"really, really, beat the pavenent” to get a |lot of conpanies
interested in it; some didn't show at the last mnute, but they

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- January 25, 2012



got diverse conpanies. Shell, Repsol and ConocoPhillips picked
up additional acreage, any he is asking the other conpanies why
they didn't show For sonme of themit was the tax issue.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if he knew the status of any of the
expl orations wells.

COWMM SSI ONER SULLI VAN deferred those answers to M. Barron.

4:05:47 PM

BILL BARRON, Director, Dyvision of Gl and Gas, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources (DNR), reported that Repsol had started its
activities; nost of the ice roads and ice pads had been built.
The season | ooks to be favorable, but from where they were four
or five nonths ago thinking it was going to be one of the
| argest ever they are |ooking at sonewhere between 10 and 16
wells to be drilled this year, which is the normal average over
the last 10 or 15 years. It still looks |like a good season but
it didn't play out as good as expect ed.

SENATOR FRENCH said this is the "reality check” they wanted from
the division as the season is upon them He asked if he sensed
that the North Slope is "rig constricted.”

MR. BARRON agreed that is part of the problem Only so many rigs
are available and that causes a bottleneck with the limted
timeframe of winter only on ice roads and ice pads.

SENATOR FRENCH said that Repsol is actually sticking to their
plan (a five-rig exploration progranm), and asked if that 1is
because they are bigger and nore sophisticat ed.

MR. BARRON answered that Repsol realized what the limtations
were and were aggressive; they dropped one rig that is being
pi cked up by Savant for exploration work out of Badam.

4:07:45 PM

SENATOR FRENCH stated that is fantastic news, because he hated
to think of where we would be with no wells drilled this year.
He asked what the practical |imt is on the North Slope for
drilling exploration wells in the next five years.

MR. BARRON replied while what he says is true given current
operating conditions on the North Slope, it wouldn't take nuch
for sonme of those operation conditions to change. Anything the
state can do - for exanple, roads to resources - to extend
permanent roads into those areas that would mnimze the need

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- January 25, 2012



for the length of sone of the ice roads would be an advantage.
And if Repsol and Geat Bear have success, there wll be a
mar ket -driven exercise to get nore rigs up here.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN added that discussions with all conpanies
indicate that a lot nore rigs could be here wth proper
pl anni ng.

SENATOR FRENCH said Great Bear is a good exanple of what can be
done in the sumrer tine.

MR. BARRON agreed and said Geat Bear had a good idea to go to
previously disturbed areas. That allowed the division do a
resource evaluation on existing disturbed soils and to sign a
wai ver from the ice road/pad stipulation in the best interest
finding to accommodat e that.

SENATOR FRENCH remarked that is exactly the kind of thinking
they want to reward.

MR BARRO N clarified that the G eat Bear wells are not included
in his nunbers, because they will be done out of the wnter
season.

SENATOR FRENCH said the roads to resources programis the kind
of thing Alaska could do with its oil wealth to be a partner
with the oil industry. He said with |lower taxes they could hope
for nore activity, but a concrete proposal to spend $90 million
for a road to Umat or double that could actually open up a new
basi n.

4:13:12 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said his understanding is that sone wells
were denied permts by sonme local North Sl ope communities.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN replied he wouldn't call it denied, and
expl ai ned that Repsol, the State of Alaska and the North Sl ope
communities collaborated over a nunber of weeks to get to an
optimal nunber of wells that got support from all the different
st akehol ders.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if five wells were pl anned.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN replied five rigs for about fifteen wells
and now that is down to four rigs.

SENATOR W ELECHOMNBKI asked if the nunber of wells was decreased.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- January 25, 2012



MR. BARRON replied yes; those were deferred until next year.
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if that was the North Sl ope Borough.
MR. BARRON replied yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if that would that have gone through
t he Coastal Zone Managenent (CZM program before.

MR. BARRON replied yes. The issues and concerns that were
brought forward by the comunities and the borough would have
been the sane ones that would have been brought forward through
the CZM Act. But it allowed the DEC, ADF&G and the | ocal
cormunities to actually engage in a "nuch nore healthy and
di rect dial ogue.™

4:16:10 PM
COW SSI ONER SULLI VAN agreed that it was a very healthy
di al ogue.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI remarked "although we have less rigs and
| ess wells being drilled now "

COW SSI ONER SULLIVAN said if he was inplying with CZM there
woul d have been nmore wells, that's the wong conclusion. He
expl ai ned that the borough has its own processes to go through
and he was coordinating closely with them

MR. BARRON stated ironically the one rig being renoved from
Repsol's program actually gave a smaller player, Savant, an
opportunity to drill this winter. So, there is an exploration
programin an area they would not have had prior to this.

4:17:59 PM

CO CHAIR PASKVAN asked in a global context if any permt
application for a significant activity on the North Slope is
being held up by permtting activity.

COWMM SSI ONER SULLI VAN answered probably no. He said they had a
very busy Novenber and Decenber because of the |ease sale, the
permtting requirenents for a fairly busy exploration season and
some big deals closing in the Cook Inlet. H's team nade a
"Hercul ean effort” along with others in state governnent.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- January 25, 2012



CO- CHAIR PASKVAN said the public should hear that there is
nothing on a permtting basis right now that is inhibiting
activities on the North Sl ope.

COWMWM SSI ONER  SULLI VAN responded if you're talking state
governnent that is correct.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how many permits are backl ogged and
if there had been any delay in any developnent in the state
because of it.

COW SSI ONER SULLI VAN deferred that answer to M. Goodrum but
added that because of this backlog sonebody sonewhere is
probably hurting. He had to do triage based on econom c inpacts
but his goal is to eradicate it. It's just not fair.

4:20: 25 PM

BRENT GOODRUM Director, Division of Mning, Land and Wter,
Department of Natural Resources (DNR), reported on June 30,
2,658 authorizations were in a backlog status; that nunber had
grown from the last |egislative session because they had 26 to
28 vacancies within his division. Once they started hiring fol ks
(31 of 36 vacancies) as of Decenber 30, in 2011 the total
backlog was 2,095, a decrease of 563 authorizations or 21
per cent .

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI t hanked him for trying to get rid of the
backl og and asked who is hurting fromit.

MR, GOODRUM replied there are various types of authorizations;
over 600 are water related. Permts are shorter in nature and
there are around 200 from throughout the state. He said the
di vision has devel oped tools for greater visibility so they can
prioritize efforts to provide the nost benefit to the state.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said they are not just getting the backl og
down, but they are trying to reform the system to nake it nore
efficient through technol ogical changes and using a kind of
systens approach, but also through regulations or statutory
changes, sone of which no | onger make sense.

CO CHAIR PASKVAN asked if he expected to see the 20 percent

reducti on continui ng. He thought 20 percent in six nonths was
awesone and wanted to know what to expect in the future.

MR, GOODRUM replied when the commi ssioner worked wth the
| egislature last year, the initial three-year tineline was

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- January 25, 2012



anbitious. Wiile some permts are easier to obtain, they also
hired and trained new folks and identified tools to better
understand their processes so they inprove continuously. To hit
20 percent was great, but he couldn't anticipate doing the sane
next year. Sonme authorizations are nore conplex, but the goal is
still to keep within the three-year conmtnent.

COW SSI ONER SULLIVAN said that in 2011 clearly there was
positive news from Cook Inlet. The USGS report canme out upping
the nunbers significantly and the departnent had one of its nost
successful |ease sales in about 30 years there. A conpetitive

price is driving this as well as conpetitive investnent
incentives. The Inlet has significant players - Apache, Hilcorp
and diverse other players - as a result of this conmttee's

actions. He enphasized that they were very vigilant with regard
safety wth all the new pl ayers.

4:29:49 PM

In 2011, a mning exploration "boom et" was going on and that
one-third of all mneral exploration and investnent in the US
took place in Alaska. It's not just big projects, but 34
different exploration projects worth over $1 million each. The
of fshore mineral leases in the None area obtained a |ot of
interest and a significant anmount of noney for the state.

COM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said the departnment had a summt called
the Strategic and Critical Mnerals Summt in Fairbanks. They
tried to get high level panelists, participants and industry
folks from all over the country; it was a sold out event. Half
the people were from out of state. At |east two big newspapers,
Bl oonberg and Reuters, covered it and talked about Alaska's
potenti al .

He said the departnment is coordinating a three-year assessnent
of strategic and critical mnerals in the state with the USGS
with a focus on rare earth elenents. Conpanies think it's great
because all the information will be nmade public.

4:33: 51 PM

He said DNR has other areas of responsibility; they had a good
year WwWth regard to agriculture and continue focusing on
pronoting the Alaska grown program The Division of Parks and
Qut door Recreation has the l|argest park system in the country,
and the director, Ben Ellis, has been doing a fantastic job
there and has new initiatives like Arts in the Park and the
boati ng safety program

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- January 25, 2012



COWMM SSI ONER SULLI VAN reported that the Division of Forestry had
doubl ed the size of the state forest. The Governor's task force
made progress, too. Alaska had a fire season, but by the end
t hey went down to help Texas put out its fires.

COMM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said finally they saw a bit of a shift in
alignment with federal governnent wth regards to resource
devel opment al t hough the Point Thonmson EI'S that has been del ayed
one year. Fish and WIldlife mght want to bootstrap sone of the
ANWR val ues into state |and, which he woul d oppose vigorously.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how many federal permts are
backl ogged.

COWMM SSI ONER SULLI VAN replied that he didn't know, but would get
back to himon that.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked how he felt the coordination with federa
governnment went on last fall's | ease sale.

COWMM SSI ONER SULLI VAN replied that it went great. He has gotten
very good cooperation from them on the Rare Earth issue and the
| ease sale. The idea was to hold the NPRA and state |ease sale
on the sane day, so a conpany could think nore strategically
about the North Slope, and it would be great to do it again.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN agreed that coordination between the state and
federal government is good.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said that was an overview of the |ast
year, but added that there are significant challenges ahead.
There are a lot of good things to build on. The TAPS throughput
issue remains the nost urgent from their perspective. A |lot of
positive progress has been on commercializing North Slope gas
and he pointed out that Alaska is closer to Asia than the Gulf
States and Qatar.

4:39:40 PM

COM SSI ONER  SULLI VAN said DNR tries every day to strike a
bal ance between responsi ble resource devel opnment and bei ng good
stewards of the environnent.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI said the new nission statenment took out
"conserve" and asked what the pressing need was to change that.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN replied that he was focused on aligning
the mssion statenent with the policy statenment in the Al aska

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- January 25, 2012



Constitution. They see the issues of conservation and the
public's future use enconpassed by the term "within the public
i nterest responsible devel opnent” and he pointed out that entire
divisions are focused on conservation, I|ike the Division of
Par ks and ot hers.

SENATOR MCGUI RE said it's predicted the state will need 180, 000
barrels of oil by 2016 in order to keep up with the current
budget and asked if he knew of permts that would be requested
that will help achieve that goal

COWM SSI ONER  SULLI VAN replied that TAPS is at a 6 percent
decline right now (he estimated that's about 36,000 barrels a
year) and that while the exploration season is positive, getting

a discovery on line will take nore time than 2016. He wasn't
aware of any developnments that would even hold the line at
600, 000 barrels wunless there is nore i-field drilling in the
| egacy field.

SENATOR MCGQUIRE said Alaskans want the state to remain
conpetitive with its oil and gas investnents and have asked if
there isn't a way to Ilink a tax benefit to guaranteed
production. She tells them no and recalls how |owering the
cruise ship tax couldn't guarantee that new cruise ships would
cone in. She said she thought the Senate was com ng around, but
that they needed data and his help to explain to the public why
the fornmula is wong. There is a base rate and the progressivity
elenment; trying to understand how every dollar conpounds into
the .4 percent tax and why that ends of up acting punitive is
very conpl ex to expl ain.

SENATOR MCGUI RE said she also wanted a good dial ogue between
Comm ssioner Sullivan and the <co-chairmen of Finance on
decoupling, because even though it was vetoed last year, a
majority of the Senate nenbers believed decoupling was the right
way to go. They are two separated systens and it was presented
to them as a 6:1 ratio until the discovery of shale oil which
put that ratio "way off the charts.” They now know at a m ni num
those two systenms ought to be separated. She wanted to hear
assurances he would work with the co-chairnmen of Finance about

it, because that is the only way they will get to a sol ution.
4:50: 07 PM

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said there is no doubt that Alaska stil
sits on a world class hydrocarbon basin; It i ncl udes
conventional state and federal, but if you start to |ook at

unconventional, USGS is doing an unconventional study up there

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- January 25, 2012



and they think the nunbers are going to be off the charts.
Everybody recogni zes that; that is not the issue. The issue is a
lot of people think we're at a sustained high price base in

terms of oil prices, but the disturbing thing from the
adm nistration's perspective is that oil production is boom ng
everywhere - other states and countries - but not in the great

hydrocarbon basin of North Anmerica. Wwy? That is a hugely
i mportant question and it has to do with costs. "There is no
doubt about it." In the state of Alaska. developnent on the
North Slope is saddled with certain costs that we're never going
to get rid of: renpteness and extrene Arctic climate and
environment. How can these costs be addressed? Road to resources
is one thing, but he has heard across the board from conpanies
that are looking to cone here and the ones that are already
here. Even Repsol said they are exploring, but they aren't
prom sing any devel opnment because of the high taxes. Wuat he
heard was focused nostly on the marginal tax rate at higher
prices.

4:54: 06 PM
He said the Governor's concern with decoupling is not having to
work through it twice, but he didn't say "no" at his press
conf erence.

4:54:53 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN said he didn't know how changing the policy
statenent interties with the legislature and he thought that
should be checked so everyone understands the |egislature's
responsi bilities versus the executive branch's.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN said in discussions he has had with people on
devel opnment of the central North Slope, he has heard about a
section 404 permt and asked what application that has on the
North Sl ope region.

COWM SSI ONER  SULLI VAN replied that it is the wetlands clean
water related issue that provides a "federal hook" into al
kinds of different activities even in the state lands. So, if
you have a federal governnment that is not being cooperative...

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked what the experience has been in the
central North Slope and if it will be an issue with shale oi
extraction.

MR. BARRON answered the 404 permt for shale will undoubtedly be

an issue. Myst of Great Bear's acreage will be involved in a 404
determ nation

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- January 25, 2012



CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if there is any history in conparable
| ands on the central North Slope with respect to how 404 issues
have been dealt with in Al aska.

MR. BARRON replied alnost all of the devel opnents on the greater
North Sl ope have had a 404 determi nation one way or another, and
the conpanies have cone to wunderstand what those tine
constraints are and plan accordingly. Feder al permtting
associated with wetlands and their primacy is one of the things
t hat has sl owed devel opnent.

CO CHAIR PASKVAN asked if this 1is a standard business
application on the central North Sl ope.

MR. BARRON replied yes, and in the Cook Inlet.
4:59:30 PM

CO CHAI R WAGONER t hanked everyone and adjourned the neeting at
4:59 p. m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- January 25, 2012



